
 
 

 

 
 
 

To Effectively Promote the Safety, Health, and Well-Being of our Residents 

Lisa M. Hanni, LS    Land Use Management Director 
Building – Environmental Health – Zoning Departments 

509 West 5th Street, Red Wing, MN  55066 
651-385-3104 

To: County Board 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: April 16, 2024 
Report date:  April 5, 2024 
 
CONSIDER: CUP request for a Self Service Storage Facility 
Request, submited by Breanna Kohn (Owner, Back Country Proper�es LLC) for a new self-service storage 
facility with 70 storage units of varying sizes in 3 structures.  

Application Information: 
Applicant: Breanna Kohn (Owner, Back Country Properties LLC) 
Address of zoning request: 13450 HWY 61 BLVD Welch, MN 55089 
Parcel(s): 46.017.0300 
Abbreviated Legal: The N 5 acres of the E ½ of the E ½ of the NW ¼ of Section 17 TWP 113 Range 16 in 
Welch Township 
Township Information: Welch Township provided acknowledgment of the proposal via email on 
February 21, 2024. A variance is needed to Welch Township setback standards for the proposed storage 
buildings. The Township denied the request on April 4, 2024.  
Zoning District: B (Business District) 
 
Attachments and links: 
Applications and submitted project summary  
March 18, 2024 DRAFT Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
Site Map(s) 
Article 11 Section 34 Self-Service Storage Facilities 
Article 11 Section 22 Site Development, Landscaping, Screening, and Greenbelt Requirements for 
Business and Industrial Zoning Districts 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
The Applicant (Breanna Kohn, Back Country Proper�es LLC) is reques�ng a CUP to allow a new self-
service storage business on property in Welch Township. The property has a lengthy history of past uses 
including use as a bar/restaurant, retail marine sales, and vehicle sales. In more recent years it remained 
vacant being used as storage and staging for the previous owners’ farming and business opera�ons. Back 
Country Proper�es LLC purchased the property in July 2022 and has been using the property for a 
communica�ons tower business.  

The property is currently zoned Business District where self-service storage facili�es are a 
Condi�onal/Interim Use.  

Project Summary:  

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


 
 

 

 
 
 

To Effectively Promote the Safety, Health, and Well-Being of our Residents 

Lisa M. Hanni, LS    Land Use Management Director 
Building – Environmental Health – Zoning Departments 

509 West 5th Street, Red Wing, MN  55066 
651-385-3104 

 The property consists of one parcel comprising approximately 4.4 acres.  

 The property is surrounded by proper�es zoned A-1 (Agriculture Protec�on District) to the east 
and south, land zoned A-2 (General Agriculture District) to the north across Highway 61, and land 
in Trust for the Prairie Island Indian Community to the west. Goodhue County Zoning regula�ons 
do not apply to land in trust for PIIC.   

 Surrounding land uses include agricultural proper�es with feedlots and row crop agriculture with 
a few dwellings in the vicinity. JRS Catle Sales operates across Highway 61 and the Prairie Island 
Indian Community land directly to the west is proposed to be used for residen�al development.  

 Access to the site is off Highway 61 BLVD (asphalt surface) on the north side of the property. 

 The property consists of two structures and a gravel parking area currently used for the owners’ 
communica�ons tower business. The parking area is fenced with a gate for access at the east 
entrance. There are two billboards on the property and one pylon sign that is not currently used.  

 The Applicant will be installing a new sep�c system on the property south of the proposed storage 
buildings.  

Proposed Business Informa�on: 
 The west side of the property would be used for self-service storage buildings while the east side 

of the property would con�nue to the used for the owners’ communica�ons tower business.   

 There would be 70 storage units for rent in three buildings. The westernmost building would house 
40 storage units ranging from 10 feet x 10 feet to 10 feet x 20 feet in size. The middle structure 
would have 24 units 15 feet x 30 feet in size. The easternmost building would have 6 units 25 feet 
x 50 feet in size. Storage will be limited to within the structures, no exterior storage is proposed.  

 Proposed hours of opera�on are year-round, 7:00 AM to 9:00 PM, 7 days a week.  

 The Applicant indicated several cameras would be installed on-site and the storage units will be 
fenced in with gated access. Perimeter fencing is required by Ar�cle 11 Sec�on 34 of the County 
Zoning Ordinance. Ligh�ng will be installed on the sides of each building that will be downward 
facing.  

 The Applicant stated the area inside the fencing will be surfaced with an impervious material 
such as gravel or blacktop.  

 There are currently two billboards on the property and one unused pylon sign. The Applicant has 
indicated a desire to install signage on the side of a building. New signage will need to meet 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance sign ordinance requirements.  

 The proposed structure setbacks do not meet County Zoning standards. The Applicant has 
proposed a 40-foot right-of-way setback where 45 feet is required and a 30-foot side yard 
setback where 45 feet is required. The Board of Adjustment considered a variance request on 
March 25, 2024, and tabled considera�on of the item un�l the Applicants supply the 
grading/drainage plan which may impact the site layout. The Board of Adjustment was also 



 
 

 

 
 
 

To Effectively Promote the Safety, Health, and Well-Being of our Residents 

Lisa M. Hanni, LS    Land Use Management Director 
Building – Environmental Health – Zoning Departments 

509 West 5th Street, Red Wing, MN  55066 
651-385-3104 

concerned that the variance request may not meet “prac�cal difficulty” standards because room 
exists to meet required setbacks on site by moving buildings closer together or reducing the 
number of units per building. The Applicant has decided to revise their site layout to comply 
with County setback requirements and withdraw their variance request.  

The County Board of Commissioners is being asked to approve the proposed use of the property. 
A revision to the site layout is not an�cipated to dras�cally affect the proposed use and will be 
reviewed by County staff before construc�on begins. The County Board could table the request 
for considera�on a�er the Applicants have either revised their site plan or the BOA has made a 
decision. If tabled, staff would need to administra�vely extend the 60 day �meline for 
considera�on.  

Drainage/Landscaping: 

 The site is fairly flat. There is a steeper area east of the proposed storage units south of the 
exis�ng building however this area is not proposed to be used for the storage facility.    

 The Applicant is required to submit a professional grading, drainage, and landscaping plan as 
required by Ar�cle 11 Sec�ons 22 and 34. The plan must show grading that will provide 
adequate drainage to avoid the collec�on of stagnant water, and unnecessary runoff onto 
adjoining proper�es or public roadways, and prevent soil erosion. Stormwater ponding, if 
needed, must also be shown on the plan.  

 Sec�on 22 specifies that at least 5% of the total lot area shall be landscaped with grass cover 
and grass areas shall be no less than 10 feet in width. With proposed structure setbacks and 
exis�ng vegetated areas, this requirement can be met. Staff will review the 
grading/drainage/landscaping plans for compliance with the Ordinance prior to the start of 
work.  

 Because the property abuts MnDOT right-of-way, the grading and drainage plan must also be 
submited to MnDOT District 6 for review to ensure no unnecessary runoff into the public right-
of-way is created.  

  Access: 

 The Applicant has proposed to use the western access point from Highway 61 for entrance and 
exit to the storage facility. There is a right turn lane for the entrance and a left turn lane begins 
in front of the driveway entrance to facilitate turning at the median to get on Highway 61 north 
when exiting the property. Customers traveling from the east will need to continue past the 
facility to the roundabout approximately ½ mile west at the intersection of Highways 61 and 316 
to turn around for access via southbound Highway 61.  

 MnDOT sent a letter to the Applicant indicating they do not have issues with the proposed 
access.  
 After the PAC meeting staff received an email from MnDOT District 6 staff indicating they 

would prefer to see the west entrance closed and access to the property only be via the east 



 
 

 

 
 
 

To Effectively Promote the Safety, Health, and Well-Being of our Residents 

Lisa M. Hanni, LS    Land Use Management Director 
Building – Environmental Health – Zoning Departments 

509 West 5th Street, Red Wing, MN  55066 
651-385-3104 

entrance. They stated that Highway 61 is part of the national highway system where two 
accesses are not appropriate on this property and the west entrance has too short a right 
turn lane. Staff forwarded these comments to the Applicant. The Applicant should consider 
revising their access proposal to meet MnDOT’s request. MnDOT will provide additional 
comments when they review the grading/drainage plan as part of their development review 
process before construction work begins on site.  
 

PAC Findings of Fact: 

1. The self-service storage facility does not appear injurious to the use and enjoyment of properties in 
the immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it substantially diminish and impair 
property values in the immediate vicinity. The use is located in a B (Business) zone which is intended 
to allow for retail, service, and repair establishments. The property has historically been used for 
various commercial enterprises. 

2. The self-service storage facility is not anticipated to impede the normal and orderly development or 
improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the area. The proposal does 
not appear incompatible with adjacent land uses. 

3. A review of the Applicant’s submitted project summary indicates adequate utilities, access roads, 
drainage, and other necessary facilities are available or will be installed to accommodate the use.  

4. The facility has ample room to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to serve the 
use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning standards.  

5. The self-service storage facility is not anticipated to cause offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise, and 
vibration in a manner that would constitute a nuisance. All lighting is downward projecting, there is 
little potential for dust generation on the site given the limited traffic and low speeds. Noises 
generated would limited in duration and not uncharacteristic of other uses in the vicinity.  

 

PAC Recommenda�on: 
The Planning Advisory Commission recommends the County Board of Commissioners: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

APPROVE the request submited by Breanna Kohn (Owner, Back Country Proper�es LLC) for a new self-
service storage facility with 70 storage units of varying sizes in 3 structures. 

Subject to the following condi�ons: 

1. The use shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative unless 
modified by a condition of this CUP;  



 
 

 

 
 
 

To Effectively Promote the Safety, Health, and Well-Being of our Residents 

Lisa M. Hanni, LS    Land Use Management Director 
Building – Environmental Health – Zoning Departments 

509 West 5th Street, Red Wing, MN  55066 
651-385-3104 

2. Applicant shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to constructing the buildings;  

3. Applicant shall obtain variance approval from the Goodhue County Board of Adjustment prior to 
constructing buildings that do not meet required setbacks;  

4. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, Ar�cle 27 
(Business District); and Ar�cle 11, Sec�on 34 (Self-Service Storage Facili�es); and 

5. A grading and drainage plan shall be submitted for review to the Zoning Administrator. This plan 
shall show compliance with Article 11 Section 22. MnDOT District 6 and the Zoning 
Administrator shall approve this plan before grading and landscaping work commence on-site. 
This requirement shall not apply to excavation associated with septic installation.  

 







Page 1 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION 

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 
March 18, 2024 MEETING MINUTES 

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

 

The meeting of the Goodhue County Planning Advisory Commission was called to order at 6:01 PM by Chair Chris Buck 
at the Goodhue County Government Center in Red Wing. 

Roll Call 

Commissioners Present: Christopher Warrington, Richard Miller, Chris Buck, Todd Greseth, Darwin Fox, Marc Huneke, 
and Tom Gale 

Commissioners Absent: None 

Staff Present: Land Use Director Lisa Hanni, Zoning Administrator Samantha Pierret, Zoning Assistant William Lenzen 

1. Approval of Agenda 
1Motion by Commissioner Miller; seconded by Commissioner Huneke to approve the meeting agenda. 

Motion carried 7:0 

2. Approval of Minutes  

2Motion by Commissioner Fox; seconded by Commissioner Huneke to approve the previous month’s meeting 
minutes. 

Motion carried 7:0  

3. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest  

There were no reported conflicts/disclosures of interest.    

4. Public Hearing(s): 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Request for a Self-Service Storage Facility 

Request for CUP, submitted by Breanna Kohn (Owner) for a new self-service storage facility with 70 storage units of 
varying size in 3 structures. Parcel 46.017.0300. 13450 HWY 61 BLVD Welch, MN 55089. The N 5 acres of the E ½ of the E 
½ of the NW ¼ of Section 17 TWP 113 Range 16 in Welch Township. B (Business) Zoned District. 

Pierret presented the staff report and attachments 

Chair Buck Opened the Public Hearing 

No one spoke for or against the request 
3After Chair Buck called three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner Fox and seconded by 
Commissioner Miller to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 7:0 

Commissioner Fox stated that Welch Township met with the Applicants and discussed with them that the use does fit the 
Township’s ordinances. The only thing the Applicant would need from the Township is a variance to the ROW setback.  
4It was moved by Commissioner Gale and seconded by Commissioner Huneke for the Planning Advisory Commission 
to:  

• Adopt the staff report into the record 



Page 2 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION 

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 
March 18, 2024 MEETING MINUTES 

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 
• Adopt the findings of fact 
• Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence into the record; and 

Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the Request for CUP, submitted by Breanna Kohn (Owner) 
for a new self-service storage facility with 70 storage units of varying size in 3 structures. 
Subject to the following condi�ons: 

1. The use shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative unless modified by a 
condition of this CUP;  

2. Applicant shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use Management Department 
prior to constructing the buildings.  

3. Applicant shall obtain variance approval from the Goodhue County Board of Adjustment prior to constructing 
buildings that do not meet required setbacks;  

4. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, Article 27 (Business District); 
and Article 11, Section 34 (Self-Service Storage Facilities); 

5. A grading and drainage plan shall be submitted for review to the Zoning Administrator. This plan shall show 
compliance with Article 11 Section 22. MnDOT District 6 and the Zoning Administrator shall approve this plan 
before grading and landscaping work commence on-site. This requirement shall not apply to excavation 
associated with septic installation.  

Motion carried 7:0 

5. Other Discussion 

There was no additional discussion.  

6. 5ADJOURN: Motion by Commissioner Buck and seconded by Commissioner Huneke to adjourn the Planning Commission 
Meeting at 6:12 p.m.  

Motion carried 7:0 

Respectfully Submitted, 

William Lenzen Zoning Assistant  

MOTIONS 

1 APPROVE the PAC meeting agenda 
Motion carried 7:0 
2 APPROVE the previous month’s meeting minutes 
Motion carried 7:0 
3 Motion to close the Public Hearing 
Motion carried 7:0 
4 APPROVE the Request for CUP Request for a Self-Service Storage Facility 
Motion passed 7:0 
5 ADJOURN. Motion to adjourn the meeting.  
Motion carried 7:0 

                                                           



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

 March 25, 2024 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
                                              

1 

 

 

 
The Meeting of the Goodhue County Board of Adjustment was called to order at 5:00 PM by Chair Daniel Knott at 
the Goodhue County Government Center Board Room.   

Roll Call  

Commissioners Present: Daniel Knott, Keith Allen, Randy Rechtzigel, Scott Breuer, and Darwin Fox 

Commissioners Absent: None 

Staff Present: Zoning Administrator Samantha Pierret, and Zoning Assistant William Lenzen 

1. Approval of Agenda 
1Motion by Commissioner Fox and seconded by Commissioner Breuer to approve the meeting agenda.     
  
Motion carried 5:0 

2. Approval of Minutes  
2Motion by Commissioner Fox and seconded by Commissioner Breuer to approve the previous month’s meeting 
minutes.   
  
Motion carried 5:0  

 
3. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest 
 

There were no reported conflicts/disclosures of interest.   
  
4. Public Hearings:  
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Variance to Minimum Setback Standards 
Request submitted by Breanna Kohn (Owner) to B Zoning District standards to allow three structures for self-
service storage units to be established less than 45 feet from Highway 61 Right of Way and less than 45 feet from 
a side yard property line.  
Pierret presented the staff report and attachments. 

Commissioner Fox asked if it was possible to reduce the distance between buildings to make them meet Zoning 
setback standards.  

Breanna Kohn (Applicant) stated that the spacing is to allow larger vehicles to turn and back into the units such as 
trucks with boats.  

Commissioner Fox asked if the plan had changed since it was originally proposed. He added that he has a hard time 
accepting this plan because it’s a new build on vacant land where they should design the layout to meet setbacks.  

Commissioner Knott asked which way the doors would face on the 25-foot x 50-foot units.  

Ms. Kohn stated they will open to the west. There will also be a fence around the perimeter.   

Commissioner Rechtzigel asked if the distance will be maintained at 40 feet from ROW on the larger units because 
the property line appears to slant down closer to the proposed building.  

The Applicant stated that the building will maintain the 40 feet because the drawing shows the larger units too far 
to the east.  

Commissioner Allen asked if the distance between the 25’ x 50’ and 15’ x 30’ units would remain at 60 feet if the 
drawing is incorrect and the building is moved further west.  



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

 March 25, 2024 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
                                              

2 

 

 

Ms. Kohn stated they would still be 60 feet apart.  

The Applicant stated that they recently found out from their engineer that a retention pond will have to be 
installed. They are unsure of the exact capacity and size at this time but it is anticipated to be installed in the 
southwest corner of the parcel. They are waiting on proposals from the engineering firm. 

 Chair Knott opened the Public Hearing 

No one spoke for or against the request.  
3After Chair Knott asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner Fox and seconded by 
Commissioner Allen to close the Public Hearing. 
 
Motion carried 5:0  

Commissioner Fox stated that he has a hard time granting a variance for something new that has the potential to 
change versus a request that already has an established structure where zoning ordinances have changed since its 
construction. The stormwater pond could affect the potential placement of the structures.   

Commissioner Rechtzigel stated that he also has difficulty granting a variance like this because it’s a new project.  

Commissioner Knott stated that there are two issues. One is the west property line variance and the second is a 
variance to right o way setbacks. He added that the plan might change when they receive information on the 
stormwater pond.  

There was discussion as to whether the Board should deny the variance until the Applicant receives the retention 
pond engineering data.  

Commissioner Knott added that he is aware there is a timeline for Applicants to wait to re-apply after a request is 
denied.   

Pierret stated that applicants must wait 6 months after denial of a request to re-apply. As an alternative to denying 
the request, the variance could be tabled. She asked for clarification about the variance the Applicants needed 
from Welch Township. 

Commissioner Fox stated that it would be from the ROW setback where Welch Township needs a variance.  

There was discussion about approving one of the variances and tabling the other request.   

Pierret stated that it would be best to act on all requests at one time rather than splitting the requests.  

Commissioner Allen asked if there are septic system setback requirements from property lines. 

Pierret stated that the County Environmental Health went out for soil tests and determined only one available 
location for the septic.   

Commissioner Fox stated that tabling the request would give them more time to grasp how a retention pond could 
change the plan. 

Pierret clarified that the Applicants could decide to return to the BOA with their engineered drawings or decide to 
amend their site plan to meet County setbacks in which case the variance would be withdrawn and the item would 
not be brought back to the BOA.  
4Motion by Commissioner Rechtzigel, seconded by Commissioner Fox for the Board of Adjustment to: 

TABLE the request for a variance, submitted by Breanna Kohn (Back Country Properties LLC, Owner) to B Zoning 
District Standards to construct three self-service storage structures less than 45 feet from Highway 61 Right of Way 
and less than 45 feet from a side yard property line.  

Motion carried 5:0  









From: Clerk Welch
To: Pierret, Samantha
Subject: Kohn Conditional Use Permit
Date: Wednesday, February 21, 2024 7:42:49 PM

You don't often get email from clerkwelchtownship@gmail.com. Learn why this is important

External Email - Use caution opening links or attachments!
Samantha,

This email serves as Welch Township's acknowledgement of the conditional use permit
applied for by Breanna Kohn. Property address 13450 Hwy 61 Blvd in Welch.

Breanna had stated that an email would suffice. If you need me to sign the form for her, please
let me know.

Thank you,
Jessi

-- 
Jessica Jacobson
Welch Township Clerk

Email: clerkwelchtownship@gmail.com











  
 

   
   

   

  

  
     

 
   

    
   

   
          

         
        

 

   
       

         

                        
                            

    
     

                

                
              

                                                         
                                         

                                                                                                            
      

                  
                        

              
        

   

     
     

   

     

   

     

  

 

            
   

                

      
   












